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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (ENERGY), to amend an existing contract with the
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc., (VC #177203), Concord, NH, to give clients
enrolled in the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), also known as the Fuel Assistance
Program (FAP), a onetime benefit on their electric bills by increasing the price limitation by $991,460 from
$5,140,370 to $6,131,830 using in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds, from the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval through September 30, 2022. There is no time extension in this contract. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 12, 2022, item #41.

Funding is available for FY2023 in the following account:

Department of Energy. LIHEAP FUELASSTSUPPL ARP
02-052-052-520010-24490000

LIHEAP FUELASSTSUPPL ARP FY2023

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $991,460

EXPLANATION

This request is being made to fully utilize the additional funds received for LIHEAP from the American Rescue
Plan Act funds (ARPA) provided to assist tlieNew Hampshire fuel assistance households. Despite higher-than-
average fuel prices and a benefit increase of 60%, there is over $8.8 million in remaining grant funds. Ifnot utilized
by September 30,2022, tiie ENERGY will be required to retum these funds to the federal government.

To fully utilize these funds, ENERGY is proposing to use these expiring funds to offer a one-time electric benefit
to existing FAP clients to provide relief from increasing electric rates. These funds will be used to reduce or
eliminate any existing arrearages, reduce or eliminate the next electric bill, and if funds remain, exist as a credit
on their electric account to use against future bills. Each FAP client will receive $405 in onetime assistance



through this initiative. This amendment will rebalance the remaining available funds to ensure consistent benefit
amounts for FAP clients across the state.

The Department of Energy will be tracking these funds independently from the annual block grant but will be
following the normal terms and conditions applicable to the annual block grant.

in the event that these Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully sijbmitted,

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner

Enclosures



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Department of Energy

Amendment No. 1

This Amendment to the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program, American Rescue Plan Act
Funds contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department Energy ("State" or
"Department") and Community Action Program Bellcnap-Merrimack Counties Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Coimcil
on January 12,2022, (Item #41), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract m^ be amended
upon written agreement of die parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of diese
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$6,131,830.00

2. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Paragraphs 1 and 2, to read:

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the State
agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $6,131,830.00 (which in hereinafter is referred to as the
"Granf)

Upon the State's receipt of the 2022 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from the US
Department of Health and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council approval, the following
funds will be authorized:

$449,952.00 for administration costs and $5,681,878.00 for program costs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

.le^e Agri, Chief Executi^(e^f^Icer
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Dcndrtment of Ejdrunent ot i!.ni»rgy

Date: 2M
d S. Chicoine, Commissioner

Approval by the Attorney GeneraPs Office (Form, Substance and Execntion)

Date: 7/15/2022
"^rint Name and Title
Josua Harrison. Asst. Atty. General

Approval by the Governor and Execntive Council

G&C Iteiri number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 2 of2
CAPBM Amendment
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofTice is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0005774597

0&

OA.

3^

(1:2

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M, Scanlan

Sccretaiy of State



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPGWERtNG COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Dennis Martino. President. Board of Directors, hereby certify that;

1. 1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called

and held on January 13. 2022. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agh, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michaei Tabory,

Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jili Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven

Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized

on behalf of Community Action.Prbqram.Belknap-Merrimack-Counties. Inc. to enter into contracts

or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and

further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and

any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable

or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This

authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further

certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence

that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full

authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any

listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 7/11/2022 Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dennis Martino

Title: President, Board of Directors

Rev 1/13/2022
hlh COA 2022 - flannit mnlino

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1010, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH
Phone: 603 225-3295 | 1 800 856-5525 Trv/TDD 1 8(K) 735-2964 Fax:603 228-1898

Website: capbm.org



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MHVDD/YYYY)

07/07/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED.BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. .

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement, A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor8omont(s).

PRODUCER

FIAl/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

MarKhester NH 03101

ggJJTACT Andrea Nlcklin

(6«) 669-3218 (603)64M331

I'd^ess- niaoch.certsQcrossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAKS

INSURER A: Selective Insurance Co. of SC 19259

INSURED

Community Action Program Bolknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

P.O. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B; State Health Care and Human Services Self-

insurer c : f^sderai Ins Co 20281

INSURER 0:

INSURERS:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 21-22 All/22.23 WC & O&O REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED.ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED PY PAID CLAIMS.
TODC

M2B.^CCOL
POLICY EPF

(MM/ODfYYYY>
POUCYEXP

(MWDO/YYYYlTYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIM/TS
Tnsr
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

PAMASE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

S2509940 10/01/2021 10/01/2022

MEO EXP (Any ona potton)

PERSONAL 4 AOV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY LOC

GENERALAGGREGATE

OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

COMBINED SINGLE LIM/T
lEa BCddanU

1.000.000

1,000,000

20,000

1,000,000

3.000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Pof person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

82509940 10/01/2021 10/01/2022 BOCILY INJURY (Per acdderX]

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-A4ADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
5,000,000

S2S09940 10/01/2021 10/01/2022
AGGREGATE

5,000,000

RETENTION %

OTH-
ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETORff'ARTNERmxECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Iitendelory In NH)
II yet, detolbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE

H NIA HCHS20220000029 {3a.) NH 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 E,L EACH ACCIDENT
1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
1,000,000

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
1,000,000

Directors & Officers Liability
82471794 04/01/2022 04/01/2023

Limit

Deductible

$1,000,000

$5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddltlontI Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space It required)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire; Dept of Energy

21 South Fruit Street

Suite 10

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELfVEREO IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo aro registered marks of ACORD
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Concord. N.H. 03301-2429

December 20, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (ENERGY), to enter into a sole source contract with the
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., (VC # 177203), Concord, NH, in the
amount of $5,140,370.00 in American Rescue Flan Act (ARPA) funds, from the U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families for the Low-Income Home Energy
Assistance Program (LCHEAJ*) as supplemental funding effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 30,2022. ^
100% Federal Funds.

Funds aire to be budgeted in FY2022 in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance

02-052-052-520010-24490000

LIHEAP FUEL ASST SUPPL ARP FY2022

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $5,140,370.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is sole source, based on the historical performance for the Community Action Agencies (CAA) in
the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, the synergies
that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide CAA's implementation of several other federal assistance
programs, and the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver FAP services. ENERGY proposes to continue^
to subcontract with the five CAA's who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than
three decades. The CAAs work closely with the El^RGY FAP Administrator if the implementation of the
program.

This .request is being made to administer the Americfui Rescue Plan Act funds (ARPA) to assist the New
Hampshire fuel assistance households in paying their energy bills. These fluids are intended to supplement the
annual fuel assistance grant award providing additional funding for many N.H. residents working to navigate
through the COVID-19 Pandemic. ENERGY is requesting to expend these additional funds by entering into



.. u'l I .--i - 14. .. ^ 'J. " "H".' ' ' '■'*"■'««■ > J 1^1 ■!
contracts wiijuhc five l^'EiTtllommunity Action Agencies who wfll work with energy proviaers to Dcttcr assisT
fuel assistance clients.

The Department of Energy will be tracking these fiinds independently fix)m the annual-block grant, but will be
following the normal terms and conditions applicable to the annual block gram.

In the event that these Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
, support this program.

cspectfiilly submitted,

Jared Chicoine
Commissioner

JC/JEL

Enclosures



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agrecmcnl and aJl of ils attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietaiy must
be clearly identiOed to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Energy

1.2 State Agency Address
21 South Fruit Sl, Ste. 10 .

• Concord, New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

P.O. Box 1016, Concord. NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 225-3295

1.6 Account Number

02-52-52-520010-24490000-

074-500587 52EBCARP22

1.7 Completion Date
September 30,2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$5,140,370.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eileen Smiglowski, Fuel Assistance Program Administrator

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-3607

l.lj^ContractorSiMature^X^ J 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Michael Tabory, Chief Operations Officer

1.13| State Ag^/signaturc 1.14 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory

1/5 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration,'Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: On:

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number; G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED-~The"Siaie of-New
-HamfKH»fcroctingHhK)ugh-lho-agency-ill^tfica-in-bIocCl"C
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereundcr, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which cose the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
cfTcctive, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. conditional nature of agreement.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued app^priaiion of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereundcr in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Controcior notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
• PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 'Die payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compcnsation-toihc Gontractor-for-thc-ScrviceSr-Tho State-shall-
IKaCETfiKIiabililjKtKlirelCbiLtta'cliS'zrdti^tfrah!
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in ho
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but ooi limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
Slate or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orieniarion, or national origin and will lake affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance withal! rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cfTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF default/remedies.

8.1 Any one or more of the following ads or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcunder ("Event
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one. or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default ond set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give die Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached,' terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
bo deemed a waiver of the right of the Stale to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defauli on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at iis sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Slate's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination-Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Rcp'on shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
informacion and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any properly which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the properly of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.M. RSA
chapter 91 'A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contmctor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
(he assignment, and a written consent of the Slate. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) -merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity intcresis, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all. or substantially ell
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright Infringement, or other claims asserted agairist
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the

3 of 4
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be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State, lliis covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
tcrminQlion of this Agreement.

U. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and'^maintaln in force, the
followihg insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than 51,000,000 per occurrence and 52,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Slate of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Ofllccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccnificaic(s) of
insurance for all insurance reqiiired under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer ideotified
in block 1.9. or his or her successor, certificatefs) of insurance
for all rcncwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to (he expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccrtificQtc(s) of Insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATfON.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor Is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain,-and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which thq person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewa)(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in conncclion with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

:T6XNOXICErAny'nouc^by'^*pait)uneretoUo-ihe-othcc>paj^-
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the lime
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to' the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF Law AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New-Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exctusivcjurisdiclion thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS, in the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified In EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachmenis and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parltes hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid In the
interpretation, construction or meaning of ilie provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrecmem, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of 4
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor shall
deliver to the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a qualified
Independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

2. This audit shall be conducted in accordance with the audit requirements of Office of .
Majiageraent and Budget (0MB) Circular 2 CFR 200, Subpart F- Audit Requirements.
The Fuel Assistance Program shall be considered a "major program" for purposes of this audit.

3. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

4. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years' questioned costs along with an Agency
response to the current status of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all 0MB letters
written as a result of audits shall be forwarded to NH DOE. The audit shall be forwarded to
NH DOE within one month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action
plan for each finding or questioned cost.

5. Delete the following from paragraph 9 of the General Provisions: "The form, subject matter, •
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any
Final Report described in Exhibit A."

6. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

7. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Ageiuy for 3
(three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR 200.333 -
Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

8. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the "Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995", the following
provisions are applicable to this grant award:

a) Section 507; "Purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products - It is the sense
of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, ail equipment and products
purchased with funds made available in this Act should be Amcrican-madc."

b) Section 508: " When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in
part with federal money, all states receiving federal funds, including but not limited to
state and local governments and recipients of federal research grants, shall clearly state
(1) the percentage of the total costs of the program or project which will be financed

CaPOM UHEAPAIIP22 ^
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with federai money. (2) the doilar amount of federal funds for the project or program, and
fC>3)-the'Perccntage'and'-dollarjamount'of-the-total»costs-of'the'proicct'Orfprogramrthattwill-be-

financed by non-govenuncntaJ sources.'

9. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within thirty (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

CAPDM UHEAPARP22 Exhibits. A. B.&
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low incomc
individuals, and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the Program
in accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel
Assistance Program Proc^urcs Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as detennined
byNHDOE.

Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) services will be dcfmed to include the following categories:

1. Outreach, eligibility, determination and certification of FA.P applicants

2. Payments directly to energy vendors;
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
b. Lines of credit

c. Budget plan payments

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as .undefined
portions of their rent

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined,in the
Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual and approve by the FAP Administrator

5. Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above

CAPBM LIHEAPARP22 ExhibitJ A. D & Ql
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EXHIBIT C

PA?]^1?TTERMS"

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the State

agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $5,140,370.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the

"Grant").

Upon the State's receipt of the 2022 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from the

US Department of Health and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council approval, the

following funds will be authorized:

$522,952.00 for administration costs and $4,617,418.00 for program costs,

The dates for this contract are January 12, 2022 through September 30, 2022.

An Approval to Obligate (Exhibit I) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New

Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal funds become available.

Drawdowns from the balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written documentation

of cash need is submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in accordance with

procedures established by the Slate as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures Manual.

CFDA Title:

CFDANo: ■

Award Name:

Federal Agency:

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

93.568

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Health & Human Services

Administration for Children and Families,
Office of Community Services

CAPUM LU-iJ:APARP22
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Dnig-Frcc Woricplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D;41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

/

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Frw Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ct scq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681 -21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference
sub-graniccs and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Departrhcnt in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards ihe'grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarmcnt. Contractors using this form
should send it to:

New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 So. Fruit St., Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawftil manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a conlrolled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assist^ce programs; and

•  (4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in
•the workplace.

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) abide by the terms of the statement; and

LIHl:APARP22
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDrVIDUALS, cont'd

; ,, ■ -DsrDEPWTI^fe^-lDFi^ITEAXTHfi^tirUIV^ ' -
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction. •

(c) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification nuinber(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the followirig actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (c), and (0-

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check Q if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Conirnuhity Action Prograrri Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. January 12. 2022 to September 30,2022
Contractor Name Period covered by this Certification

Michael Tajjory, Chief Qpcration.s Office
Nam^nd Title of Authorised Cqnlja^r Repr;esentalivc >

-  12/21/2021 ^
Contractor Reprcsentative/Sighaturc Dale

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1. 12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

/  US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
LLHEAP

Contract Period: Upon Governor & Council Apprpval to September 30, 2023

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(I.) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
■  person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of

Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress In connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-granlce or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying",
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-rccipienis shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance vyas placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission oftiua-^rtjfica is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposejLby Section 135^ Title 3 U^.S. Ggdc. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subida to a civil penalf/if no^ress than $/0,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

ChiefiOperatioosiOfFicer

Contractor Rcprc^^fatiyc Signature

Michael Tabory v

Contractor's Representative Title

12/21/2021

Contractor Name Date

LlMr:APARP22
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STAND ARD-E-XHIBIT-F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections l.l 1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in (his covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification, ' The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy's determination whether to enter into this transaction.. However, failure
of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person
from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into, this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default. •

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (conti-act) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant loams that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implerhenting Executive Order I2S49: 45 CFR.Part 76. See the attached definitions.^

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is deban-ed, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debannent, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NHDOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered tranMctions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require cstablisliment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course ofbusiness dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRTMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, coniM

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibiliiy Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or volunlarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a threc-ycar period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Slate antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

■  (c) arc not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineiigihility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Parilcipahts)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certi^' to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will Include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding DebamVeht, Suspension, Incligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions,*' without modTT^Slkn in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier-covered transa'i^libns;.

•  Chief Operations Officer
i^ractpf^^epresefe Contractor's Representative Title

Michael Tabory ^ 12/21/2021
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

" STANDAIU):^

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABO-ITIES ACT COMPLUNCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.1'2 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (conlract)i the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with ail applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

ChiefOperations Officer

niractor Rcpresc/itaciveSignaturc Contractor's Representative Title

Michael Taborv 12/21/2021

Contractor Name Date

LIHEAPAJU>22
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF.ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with PartC of Public Law 103-227, the'Tro-Children Act of 1994", smoking may not be permitted
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by federal programs either directly or
through state or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan
guarajuees, and contracts. The law does not^apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment.

The above language must be included in any sub-awards that contain provisions for children's services and that
all sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result
in the imposition of'a civil monetary penalty of up to $1,000 per day.

Chief Operatiobs' Officer

Contractor Rcprbschfatiye Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Michael Taborv 12/21/2021

Contractor Name Date

LIHEAPARP22

CFDA*W.56«

P37 Exhibits D thru H



FAP Approval to Obligate EXAMPLE ONLY

:APPROVAL'T0lDBlJG'ArE

Eihibti I

STATE

First 7/1/2019 Wood and SEAS Only

FUbirASSISTANCE'PROGKAM

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 538,220.00 5;646,370.00 4,5B2;60 357.200.00 6.546,372.60

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,166,551.00

'TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00

538,220.00

1.165,551.00

4,480,819.00
0.00

4,582.60

0.00 •

357,200.00

1.165.551.00

5,380,821.60

BMCA

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN., FA PROGRAM . SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTEO BUDGET ■95,663.00 .  1,003,586.00 1,000.00 69,960.00 1,170,209.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

, PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED .. . 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00
0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207.112.00 J
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

- 0.00
95.663.00

207.112.00
796.474.00

0.00
1.000.00

0.00
69.960.00

207.112.00
963.097.00

SNH5
First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED.BUDGET 163,777.00 1,718,152.00 1,000.00 .84,220.00. 1,967,149.00
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED D.OO 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00 .
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00
163,777.00

354.578;0Q
1,363,674.00

0.00
1,000.00

0.00
84,220.00

354.578.00
1,612,571.00

SCS
First 7/1/2019 ■  ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 83,835.00 879,501.00 825.00 :64;960.00 1,029,121.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED . 0.00 0.00 ■ 0.00 0.00

0.00

.  .0.00 .
ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,604.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00
83.835.00

181.504.00
697,997.00

0.00
825.00 .

0.00
- 64,960.00

181,504.00
847,617.00

CAPSC
.First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
CONTRACTED BUDGET 54.676.00 ■ 673,593.00 757.60 65,110.00 684,138.60
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

O.OQ
0.00

iTHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 O.OO ■ 118,373.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00
54,676.00

118.373.00
455,220.00

0.00
757.60

0.00
55,110.00

118.373.00
565,763.60

TCCA
First 7/1/2019 ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1,471,638.00 1,000.00 82,950.00. 1,695,757.00 j
EXPECTED BUDGET

..PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00
0.00 ..

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 '303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984,00 -.1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00
140,269.00

303,984.00
1,167,554.00

0.00
1,000.00

0.00
82,950.00

303.984.00'
.1,391,773.00

LIHEAPARP22
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STA WARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUPJDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October I,.2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as of the dale of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Jnformoiion),
the New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government and those
revenues are greater than $25M.annually, and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA-requircd data by the end of the month plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment Is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting - Sub-award and Executive Compensation. Information)^ and
further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the
General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

The below named Cqntractop-trgrecs to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department 6fEher^ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial

:^c'couhtability ̂ dTi^sparch^'Act.

Michael Taborv.'Chief ODe^rations Officer
(Contractor'Repnesqrr^ve Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Communitv Action Program Belknap-Mctfiifiack Counties. Inc. 12/21/2021
(Contractor Name) (Dale)

.Gdhtraclor jpitials'y"^
Date

Page I of2
LIHEAPARP22 CFDA#93.568



NEWHAMPSHrRE-DEPARTMENT-OF-ENERGY -

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is; 07-399-7504

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) 525,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here.

Ifthe answer to H2 above is YES, please answer (he following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO ' YES

If the answerlo//3 above is YES, stop bore.

If the answer to above is NO, please answer (be foUowing:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization ore as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: .. Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Najtic: Amount:

Contractor Initial

Date

Pagc 2 of2
L1HEAPARP22 CFDA#93.568



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. WilUoni M. Gardner, Seaciary of Siaic ofihe State of New Hampshire, dohcreby certify thai COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonproni Corporalion registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28,1965. i further certify that oil fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number; 0005338239

0m

%

y

fN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Phone (603) 225-3295
(800) 856-5525
Fox (603) 228-1898
Web www.bm-cap.org
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belknap-merrimack counties, inc.
euaOWCai.sC CONiwUMlTtfl SINCt ■«»«

2 indusfriol Pork Drive
P.O. Box 1016
Concord, NH

03302-1016

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Dennis Mafiihb. PriBsiderit. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected officer of Gbhnmuhitv Action Probram" Belkh'aD-MetTimack^Cbunties. Inc.

2. The followng is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on January 14, 2021, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operations Officer/Deputy Directori Jill Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martlno, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
on behalf of Community Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter into contracts
or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and ail documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has.not been amended or repealed and remains in fulj force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.
Such authority to be in force and effect until 9/30/2022. I further certify that it is understood
that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed
above currently occupy the positlon{s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the
corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to
bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are
expressly stated herein.

Dated: 12/21/2021 Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dennis Martlno
Title: President, Board of Directors

Rftv. 11/12/2020
kh:COA - damis nwtino
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certificate of LIABILITY INSURANCE
' 'OATB (lUWOmrYY)

t(V01/202l

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUEO A3 A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER|S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT ir Uio cartincate hotdar It an ADDITIONAL INSURED, Uia pollcy(les) mutt hava ADDITIONAL INSURED provitlona or b« tndorsod.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, tubjact (0 Uio larmt and condlUont of iha policy, certain pellciea may requirt an andoraemanL A atatamani on
(hit ccrtincate doaa not confar rfghta to the cartlflcata holder In lieu el tuch endorterT)ont(t).

pROoucen

FIAI/Crots Insurance

tlOO Elm Street

Manchetlar NH 03t0t

;amms9: ntanch-cefts^c/osiagency-com
INSUfUtmS) AFFCRDWO COVERAOC HAtCa

iNSufotAA: Selecilva Insurance Group
wrtuRte ■

Community Action Program'BelkAapMerrlmack Counties inc.
p.O.Boxiote

Concord NH 03302

ursuftEK e: OtentP Health Care and Human SaiMees Seo-

imsumac: FedMlinaCo 202SI

IWSUMRO;

IHSUASAC:-

iKSuaeaF:

THIS (S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTED OELOW KAVE BEEN ISSUED TO'THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INOICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDfTON OF ANY COrfTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUEO OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES OESCRIBEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SKOWAI MAY HAVE BEEN REOUCEO BY PAID CLAIMS.

ss/r
Tvpe OF iNsuRANce POUCY NUMBER - LWITS

X COMUERQAL OENERAL UAOUTV ' EACH OCCURRENCE •
1,000,000

X OCCUR

CUMAUE TOKtUllfi
PREUISEE (Ca iearri^ t

1.000.000

MEO EXP CAmr er» pwion) t
20,000

A-
.

3 2600940 10/01/2021 10/01/2022
PERSONAL • AOV »/URY

i.ooo;ooo

[ocfrVAitUUSQATe LMI1 APPLIES i'ER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
3,000,000

1 POUCY r>3ss (]3 toe PROOOCTS. COUPTOP AGO 1
3.000,000

-i
OTHER;

1 AUTouooaeuADiuTY coMOiKeo QNOLE uun
rEtPcoerrin IL 1.000.000 1

X

□
AHYAl/ro eooHY INAIRV (Pm pwiani t

A OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
IDREO
AUTOS ONLY

$CHEtXjl£D
AUTOS

S 2600940 10/01/2021 10/01/2022 eCOlLY INAIRY (p|> t

—i NON-OWKIEO
AirTr-ME*M V

1 PROPERTY OAUACE
IPcrKddertl S

r t

X UMSREUA LMB 1X OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 6,000,000 {
A OrCESSUAS CUUMS-MADE. S 2509940 10/01/2021 10/01/2022 j .AGOREOATQ c 5,000,000 ' 1

1 OEO 1 X) RETENTION t 0 1  .1
1 WORKERS COUPtLVtAnON X|, STATUTE 1 1 1

B

ANOEMPLUT&Hir UAWUIT

AMY PRapRiEroRn>ARTNEivExecuTTVE rm 1
N /A HCHS20210000S95(Sa.) NH 02/01/3021 02/01/2022 R.L. EACH ACCIOEMT 1

1.000.000
OrnCERMEMBCR CXCLUOCO?
{Uwi4ft*<YktNH) \ZJ EX. nSEASe • EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000
Vytt, eaxKbAundc
neSORIPTION OF OPERATIONS ( E.L DISEASE • POOCV UMfT _s_ 1.000.000

c
Directors & Ofliccfs Uablllty 8247.1704 04/01/3021 04/01/2022

Umk

DeducUOle ■

SI.000.000

S5.000

OeSCnPTIONOFOf>eAAnONS/LOCATIONSIVe>eCUS |ACO(U>10t,A«aUontlR«n«nilSen«M«.mlV(MtR*eMdHm»raiplc«Ur«qulrM}

Refer lo policy lo exclusionary endorsamenia end cpaclal provtsioni.

I  '

.CERT1F1CAT6 HOLDER CANCELLATION

Siala o> New HampiNre; Dcpl of Energy
21 South Frull Street

Suite 10

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCtES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICB WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

4

AUtHDAl2CD R£M^C&eKTATTVC

Concord
1

NH 03001

ACORO 26(2016/03} . in* ACORO nsmo and logo aro ragiatared marks of ACORO
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To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUPrrbRS'REPORT

Report oh the Financial Statements
We have audited the accornpahying financial statements of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of February 29. 2020 and February 28, 2019, and the related statements
of activities, functional expenses and cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the
years then ended.

'i\/lanaciem'eht's Responsi'b/7/'fv-fo/''f/T9 Financial Statements
Management' is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

■^uditor^'ResbdhsibilitV . j
'Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based.on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance ■
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures' that are appropriate In the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivene^. of the
entity's Internal 'contrpl- Accordingly, we express no ••such opinion. Ah audit also-includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies, used; and the- reasonableri'^.s of
significant accounting estimates made by management; as weli as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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0bin ion

In our opinion,, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of
February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019. and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In
the United States of America.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards^as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awanjs, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted In the United Slates of America. In our opinion, the information Is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reooiiina Required bv Government Auditing Standards
In accordance" with Government Auditing Standards, we have alsa issued our report dated
January 5. 2021, on our consideration of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of jts compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and. not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 5, 2021



COMMUNITY ACTlQN PROGRAM BELKNAP-^ MgRR

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current assets

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 29. 2020 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2019

ASSETS

2020

$  549,026
2.558;i3'55:

22.916;
44'159
ViO.OTS

3:263.034.

2fil9

%  1,411,762.
2;321.041
' 22;800
5im2

Td2;S22

3.910.757

PROPERTY

Land, buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and vehicles

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS
Due from related party

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET-ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of notes payable
Line of credit

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

5.544.770
5.6.S2.S39;

11.197.309

6.695,428

4.501.881

139.441

139.441

-201.245.
550.000

1.160:635-

. 757.999
T.0&4.-516

3,754.395

814.253

4,568,648

4.749.673
5;9.79;320-

10.728.993

6^330.580.

4.398.413

139.441

139.441

$ 7.924.356 $..8.448,611.

$  183,269

1,069.165:

1.066.748-
■998:332

3.317.514

781.385

4.098.899

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS
See Notes to Financial Statements

2,992,894
362.814

3,355,708

3.842.287
507.415

4.349.712

$ 7.924.356 $ 6.448.611



COtVllOlUNITY-ACflbNPRQGR'AMBECKNAPVM

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THg yEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29; 2020

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Granl awards

Other funds

In-kind

United Way

Tolal revenues end other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program aervlces
Other costs

Depreciation
In-kind

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2020

Total

$  18,270.247
2.437.366

920.759
11,938

$

2.986.021

S  18.276.247
:5:423;382
920.759
1'1;938

21,646.310 2,986.021 24.632.331

3.130.622 (3;130,622)

24.776.932 ;(144.601), 24.632.331

9,213.867

2.500.455
322,894

1,393,046
9,231,697
1.634.-451

401.168
. 920,759

••

9.213.BB7
2.508.455
322,894

1,393,046
9.231,697
1.634.451
401,166
920.759.

25.626.335 25.620.335

(849.403) (144,601) ■(?w;ob4)

3.842.297 507.415 ■4.349.71?:

$  2.992.894 S  362,814 $  3.355.708

See Notes to Financial Statements

4



COMMUNITY ACTION PRQOF^AM BELKNAP^ MERRIIViACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 26. 2019

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards

Other funds

ln>kind

United Way

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Salaries.and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs

Depreciation

In-kind

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2019

Total

(  19:205.554
4:706.408
829.464
18.227

$
169.246

$  19.205,554
4.375;'654.
829:464
1B,«7

24.759.653 .  109.246 24,928,869

364.684 (364.684)

25.124.337. (195.438). 24.928.899

8,905.642

2.428,774

324.491

1.310.477

•8,941.429

1.707,999
330.491

829.924

-

8,905.642
2,428.774
324,491

1,310,477
8.941.429
1,707.999
330,491
629.924.

24.779,227 24J79,227

345.110 (195,438) 149;67.2

3,497;187 702.853 4.200.040

.5 3.W2.297 $  507.415 S  4.349.712

Sec Notes to Financial Statements
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_c6MMUf;i>W.-Acfi6N-PRQGRAM-BE^KNAP-

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2019

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Decrease (increase) in current assets:

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepafd expenses

Decrease (increase) In current iiabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to properly
Investment In partnership

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net t>orrowlngs on line of credit
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTtVITlES

NET DECREASE IN CASH

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR

(994,004) $

401,166

(235,0.14)

(11.6)
0,473

■91,470
(3Da.749)'

■ .86,184

(951.390)

(268.6'S4y
(7.556F

(276,190)

550,000
(iB5.156)

364,844

(862,736)

1.411.762

-  549,026

149,672

330,491

672\364
.3,767

i5:65s

.(374;532)
■  10;072
(189.001).

83e;468

(803.770)
(3,769)

(807:539)

(170.672)

(170;672)

•(33^.923)

1.751,685

1.4.11.762.

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION;
Cash paid during the year for Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Property purchased with now debt

73,255

$  • 236,000

63,133

See Notes to Financial Statements
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■■COMMUNITY ACTION-PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRIMACK COUNTIES-. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020

y

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and t^enefits
Travel
Occupancy

j Program Services
Other costs:

Accounting fees
Legal fees .
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
Conferences, conventions and meetings
Interest
Insurance
Membership fees
Utility and maintenance
Computer services
Other

Depreciation
In-Kind

Total functional expanses

Procirarh Manademeiit Total

$  8.797,236 $ 416;631 -i 9,213.^7
2.468.891 ■3'9;46ji' 2.^08.455

322.870 124-
1.225.266 1.67v78;i 1.393.0!46"
9.231,697 -

9.23i:6'97'

475 60,771 61.246
. 9,261 9.261

214,778 31.442 246.220
19,055 34,399 53,454
3,627 275 3,902

27,109 6.562 33,671
27.248 4,662 31,910
57,543 15,712 73.255

133,619 5,349 139,568
.12,862 7,586 20,448
170,336 48,114 218,450
.51,906 51,908
663,656 27,502 691,158
401,166 •- • 401,166

.  920.759 . 920,759

$  24.750.200 5 876,135. .5 . 25.626.335

See Notes to Financial Statements
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.:gQMIvmNITYACTIQN:PROGRAMBELKNAP-.MERRlMACKCOUNT(ES..INC.,

STATEMEfrr OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

Program Manaqcmont

Salaries end wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program Services
Other costs:

Accounting fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
Conferences, conventions and meetings
Interest -

Insurance

Membership fees
- Utility and maintenance
Computer services
Other

Depredation
In-kihd

Total functional expenses

0,682.073
2.320,432
323.333"

1.293,439
8.94 "1,429.

19.554

284,548

53,134

2,206

45,786

22,840

46.478

143,136
9.891

214,214
37,562

701.232

330,491
829,924

223,569.

108,342:
1,-158

17,038^

57,892

3,520

3.732
27,848-

16,655
6,760
9,093

1.304

612

:S- :8.'90:5.B42
2;428.77.4

324.491

'1,310.477
8.94"1.42g

57,892
23,074

284.548

53.134

2.208

'49.510
50,686

63,133
149,896
18,984

214,214

38.866

701.844
330,491
820,924

$, 24,3"bi;704: :$ 477:523 24-77^7

Sec Notes to Financial Statements
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jPROGRAMRELKNAP-

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020 AND FEBRUARY 28.-2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Ordahtzatlon

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties. Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the ftnancial support of various, federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Basis of Accouritinq

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the
United State of America.

New Accouritinq Pronouhcemeht

During the year, the Organization adopted the provisions of FASB ASU 2018-08,
Clarifying the Scope end the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received end
Contributions Made (Topic 958). This accounting standard Is meant to help not-for-proftt
entitles evaluate whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions or as
exchange transactions and, if the transaction is identified as a contribution, svhether it is

■ conditional or unconditional.' ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization determines
whether a resource provider Is receiving commensurate value in return for a grant, if the
resource provider does receive commensurate value from the grant recipient, the
transaction is an exchange transaction and would follow the guidance under ASU 2014-
09 (FASB.ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker,
the transfer Is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending February
29, 2020 and February 28. 2019 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no material impact
to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no adjustment to
opening net assets was recorded.

Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the Organization to report
information regarding Its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications;



Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not

subject to any donor-Imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions will, be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $362,814 .and $507,415 at
February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively. See Note 13. .

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal
income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue
Service has determined them to be other than a private foundation.

The Organization files Information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for
years before 2017.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its tax position taken on its Information returns for the years (2017.through 2020), and
has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in (he
Organization's financial statements.

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life In excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the'estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles . 3-7 years

10



Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers a.ll liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equiyailen.ts:. The Qrgahlzation maintains its cash in bank deposit accbunts, which at,
times, may exceed fe'dera|!y';lnsured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
loss.es in such accounts and believes it is not exposed tb. any significant risk with
respect to these accounts.

Contributed Servlcee
Donated services are recognized as contributions In accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, If the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various sen/ices throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under FASB ASC
No. 958 were not met.

In-Kind Dbriatlbhs./ No'nc~ash Transactions
Bonated'facilities, services and suppliesi.are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying financial statements,' if the criteria,for recognition is met. This represents

$jirT)jEfte(j•fair Value.fo'f-jiHf -.seryice; .scipplles/and ispace that the Organization might'
j.ncui' uriber 'fibhtlal operating activities.' The Organization received $920,759 and-
.$829.9^4.10 ddhated facilities, sen/icps: and'supplies for .the yea.rs ended February 29.
2620 arid February 28. 2019, respectively, as follows:

The Org.anlza.tipn receives eohlributed-professional services that are required to be
recorded in a.ccprdancie. with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was .determined to be $52,181 and $35,519 for the years ended February 29,
2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively.

The Orgapizati.ph 'alsp Tec.eives contributed, food cprhmo'dities and other goods 'that are
required to be.'.recorded 1n .accordance with FASB ASG No. .958. The estimated fair
.yalu.e .of these food cpmrn.pdities and goods was determined to be $868,578 and
$793,945 for the years ended February 29. 2020 and February28, 2019, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 29. 2020 and February 28, 2020 totaled $46,899
and $54,461, respectively.

Inventorv

Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method.

11
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T1jnctiofrarAiroyatib>rQfExpe^n^^^ ■
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the program services and supporting activities benefited. Expenses are charged
to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or estimated usage based on
time spent on each program by staff.

'Expense Method of allocation
Wages and benefits Time and effort

' Depreciation Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following repre^nts the Organization's financial assets as of February 29, 2020
and February 28, 2019:

2020 2019

Financial assets at year end:
Gash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 549.026 $ 1,411i.762
Accounts receivable .. 2,556.855 '2,321,041
Investments 110,078: 102,522

Total financial assets 3,215,959 3,635.325
Less amounts not available to be used within

one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 362,814 • 507,415
Less net assets v/ith time restrictions to be

met in less than a year : ^ :

Amounts not available wilHin one year 362,814 ■■507i415

Financial assets available to meet general -q 007 am
expenditures over the next twelve months ? ^■853.145 $ 3,347i7lK

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $3,995,000 and $3,880,000 respectively, at February 29.
2020 and 2019, The Organization has an available line of credit in the amount of
$50,000 and $200,000, respectively, at February 29, 2020 and February 20, 2019.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estiniated to be zero at February 29. 2020 and February 28, 2019. The
Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.

12



4. REFUNDABLEADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period (n which the related services or expenditures are performed or
Incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,084,516 and $998,332 as of February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively.

6. RETIREMENT PLAN
The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 29.-2020 and
February 28, 2019 totaled $181,057 and $184,961, respectively.

6. LEASED FACILITIES
Facilities "bccupibd by the Organization for its community service programs are. leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, the annual lease
expense for IhCsleased facilities was $546,861 and $480,258, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended
FebrUarv.28) Amount

2021 45,6,56j3.
2022- 13.8,621
2023; 1;2.S,947
2024 1-0;5.88l2
2Q25 98,362

thereafter . :876.24l.

Total -S -i:6Q1.021

7. accrued: EARNED TltVIE
The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $341,532 and $377,163 at
February 29, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

8. BANK LINE OP CREDIT
The Organization has a $200,000.revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a

, bank that is due on demand. The lirie calls for monthly variable interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (6.00% and 6.50% at February 29, 202O and
February 28, 2019, respectively) plus 1%. but not less than 6% per annum. The line is
secured by all the Organization's assets. There was a balance of $200,000 outstanding
at February 29. 2020. There was no outstanding balance on the line.at February 28,
2019.

13
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During the year ended February 29, 2020 (he Organization entered into an additional
revolving line of credit agreement (the line) in the amount of $400,000, with a bank that
is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based on the
LIBOR rate (4.02% at February 29. 2020). The line is secured by all the Organization's
assets. There was a balance of $350,000 outstanding at February 29, 2020!

9. LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 29, 2020 and February 28,
2019;

2020 2019

5.50% note payable to a financial institution. in
monthly installments of $1,634 through July 2039.
The note is secured by property of the Organization. $ 232,259 $

5.75% note payable to a financial institution In
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$13,912 through July 2023. The note is secured by

' property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center. 520,492 649,372

3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. 57,848 64,943

7.00% note payable to a bank In monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023."
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignrhent of rents and leases on property
located In Concord, New Hampshire for Early Head

' Start. 204.899 250.339.

Total 1,015,498 .9.64:654 ■

Less amounts due within one year ..201.245 .'183.269

Long term portion •$ 814.253 $. 781.385

14



The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 29, 2020 were as follows:

Year Ending
February.28 Amount

2021 $ 201,245

202^2 .213,444
2m '226.567
2Q24 143.136
,2625. ■16.749'

Thereafter 214..357-

16. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 29, 2020 and
February 28, 2019:

/  20M 2019

Land $ 168;676: $ . 168;676-
Buildlng and improvements 5,376,094 4,580,996
Equipment and vehicles 5.652.539: 5,979,321

11,197,309 . 10.728.993
Less accumulated depreciation 6.695.428 6i33Q,56Q

Property and equipment, net $ ^,501.881- ^ 4.398,413

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 29, 2020 and February 28. 2019
was $401.166 and $330.491. respectively.

11. CONTINGENCIES
The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the goveming laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, If any. have not been determined .or assessed
as of February 29, 2020.

12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
For the years ended February 29. 2020 and February 28. 2019, approximately
$12,100,000 (51%) and $12,000,000 (48%). respectively, of the Organization's total
revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human Services. The future
scale and nature of the Organization Is dependent upon continued support from this
department.

15



Net assets 'with" dofior restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019: i

2020 2019

NH Food Pantry Coalition $ 663 $ 663.

Senior Center 141,114
26:o,,91^Elder Services 2,867

Mary Gale' 24,082 -•

NH Rotary Food Challenge 5,068 5,068

Summer Feeding 18.840- -

Common Pantry 4.764 5,534

Caring Fund 9,064 11,811
Agency - FAP 4,751 6,342

Agency Head Start 145,747 137,987

Community Crisis 2,550 350

Other Programs 3.304 1.025.

Total net assets with donor restrictions 362:814 .$. •'en?

14. iRELATED. PARTY TRAKISAGTIQNS
The Organization Is related to the-_ following corporation as a result of common

. management:
Related.Partv Function

CAPBMC Development Corporation Real Estate Development

There was $139,441 due from CAPBMC Development Corporation at both February 29.
.  2020 and February 28, 2019.

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Relatdd Party Function

Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing. Inc., HUD Property
Alton Housing for the Elderly. Inc. HUD Property
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership Low Income Housing Tax

Credit Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation Property Development
Ozanam Place, Inc. Transitional Supportive

Services

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I Low Income Housing Tax
•Credit Property

16



. The services performed by the Organizatiori included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties)", HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of,property.

The total amount due from the related parties (collectively) at February 29, 202O and
February 28. 2019 was $198,763 and $165,937, respectively, and Is included in
accounts receivables.

15. RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Community Action Program Belknap-Merhmack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $109,078 and $101,522 at February 29. 2020 and February 28, 2019.
reispectively.

ASC Topic 1^0. 825-10, Financial instruments, provides a definition of fair value vrfiich
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally

. accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value Is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 620,
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent wltti market. Income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value

^ hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3

■ measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical Investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices In active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.
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At February 29. 2020 and February 28, 2019, the Organization's Investments were
classified as Level 1 and were based on fair value..

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Level 11

2020 2019

Beginning balance - mutual funds 1.01,522' $ 97,75J
Total gains (losses)-mutual funds 7.556 3.769

Ending balance - mutual funds S. 109.078: .S ■rO-1.522-

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization also has $1,000 invested in a Partnership. The Lakes Region
.  Partnership for Public Health, at February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019.

17. FISCAL AGENT
•Com.rnuriity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. acts as the fiscal agent
for the following community organizations: Franklin Community .Services Building
(Franklin), the Common Pantry (Laconia), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Coalition, the NH Rotary Food Challenge and FGP/SCP Association Region 1.
The Agency provides the management and oversight of the revenues received
(donations) and the expenses (utilities, food and emergency services).

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before the financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through January 5. 2021, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

The Impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent Its spread
are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of these
disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's financial
and operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions
continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19
pandemic and the Impact of governmental regulations that might be imposed in
response to the pandemic.
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In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $1,936,300
under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, is established as part of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act").

If the Organization does not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion of the PPP
loan is payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%. with a deferral of payments for
the first six months. The Organization intends to use the proceeds for purposes
consistent with the PPP. Through the date of this report, the final determination of
forgiveness has not occurred.
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(See Independent Auditors' Report)



cdwiMUNrhfACTiQNPROGRAMBELKNAP-F^ERfflMACKCQUNTlES.-INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOmJRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Head Start

Head Start

Low lr>cofnc Home Erwrgy Assistaixaa Program
Low Irjconw Home Ef«rgy Assistance Program-WX
Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program-HRRP

Community Services Stock Grant

Social Services Block Grant-Home DeKvered & Congregate Meab
Sodai Services Block Grant-Service Link

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assistance for Needy Famnies-Farmly Plannli>Q
Temporary Assistance for Needy Famffies-Workptace Success

AGING CLUSTER

Title ill. Part B-Senior Transportation
Title 111. Part C-Congregate Meals

Title III. Part C-Home DeDvared Meab
NSIP

CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER

Child Care & Developmenl Block Grant
ChDd Care FAandatory & M3tchir>g Funds of the CCDF

M.EDICAID CLUSTER

Medical Assistance Program

Medical Assistance Program - Veterans

CFDA

NUMBER

93.600

33.600

93.568

93.568

93.568

93.569

93.667

93.667

93.558

93.556

93.044-

^.045

93.045
93.053

93.575

93.598

93.778

93.778

PASS THROUGH NAME

State of New Hampshire

State of New HampsNre

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshtro
Southern New Hampshire Services

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
Gateways Community Services

QIC

NCI

TOT

6-1;

G-11

G-t:

TOl

G-i;

05-{
545

TOl

05-<

055

CLL

055

055

055

105

CLL

NOI

NO I

CLl

102-

TOl

•  FaiT% Ptonning - Services ,
Pi*«e HctSi Ein«atner fUs^enM: Cvopcfatfw AawfliM bv enresKy Rmpcrm; Pvbfc Hcslh

MATERNAL. INFANT. AND EARLY CHILDHOOD HOME VISITING CLUSTER
ACA - Maternal. Infant, & Earty Childhood Homo Vblllng Program

ACA - Agir>g & Dlssbility Resource Center
National Family Careglver Support Title III. Part E-Servlce Link
Speciai Programs for Aging, Tlte IV-Servlce Unk
CMS Research Demonstrations S Evaluations

93.217 State of New Hampshire

93.354 State of New Hampsftire

93.505 State of New Hampshire

.93:517 State of New Hampshire

'93:052. State of New Hempshira
•03:M8 State of New Hampshire
■n' tyg State of New Hampshire

05-5
U62

055

102-

102-
102-

102-



FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

FOOD OlSTRIBUTlON CLUSTER

Commodity Supplemental Food Program
Emergency Food Assistance Program-Adminlstraaon
Emergency Food Assistance Program

Trade Mitigation

Rural Housing Preservation Grant

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICES.

FOSTER GRANDPARENTS/SENIOR COMPANION CLUSTER
Senior Companion Program

US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Formula Grants for Rural Areas-Concord Transit

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

Errhanced MoWlity of Seniors & Ind. W/Disabilitjes-CAT
Enhanced MotjUlty of Seniors & Ind. W/Oisabilities-Rural Trar^portalion
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Ind. W/Otsabtllties-Voluntaor Drivers

US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Si4>portive Housing Program
Supportive Housing PrograrrvOutreadh

Emergency SolutiorTS Grant

Continuum of Care Program

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Weatherizsbon Assistance for Low Income Persons

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Serxlof CoiTununfty Service Em^oyment Program

WlA/WlOA CLUSTER

CFDA

NUMBER

1:01565

10.568

io.^9

10.178

10.433

94.016

20.509

20.513

2015.13
'20.513.

14.235

14.235

14.231

14.267

81.0<12

17.235

PASS THROUGH NAME

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of. New Harrpshira

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire-Department of Transportation

Slata of Nevf Hampshire-Department of Transportation
State of New Hampshire-Oepartment of Transportation
Merrimack County

State of New Hampshire
State of New H^pshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Harrpshire

State of New Hampshire

151

817

817

CLt

NOI

NOi

usi

16S

CNi

NH-

NH-

NH-

NH

CLt

DO"

05-1
05-1

05-1

05.f

HUi

EE(

DOI

104



COIVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

.  NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29..2020

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 29, 2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it Is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes In net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

note 2 SUMWARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts repoiled as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de mlnimls indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance,

NOTE 4 FOOD CGMIVIODITIES AND VEHICLES
Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAIVI BELKNAP-IVIERRIIVIACKCflUNTIES. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERN/WEA/r/AUD/mG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors ^
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited. In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 29. 2020, and
the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for. the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have Issued our report thereon
dated January 5, 2021.-

Internal Coritrof Over Fihahciat Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Con\munity
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a materia! misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a materia! weakness, yet
Important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of. this section and was not designed to identify, all deficiencies In intemal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify
a deficiency in intemal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2020-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other.Maiters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement.
we performed tests of its. compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncomplianc© with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards.

Putpdse o f this Report
The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an Integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 5. 2021

24



MCDonnWl
& Roberts

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOIMANTS

ffOLFEBORO • NOmW CCWWY

DOVER • CONCORD
SniATOW

COMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES: INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties.. Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on CbrhDliance forCQch Major Federal Program
We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement thai
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 29. 2020.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Manaaemeni'sResponsibllitv

Management Is' responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and thai terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors'ResponslbfUtv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
• Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the
types' of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have, a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary In the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each li/laior Federal Program
In our cpinioni'Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of Its major federal programs for the year ended February
29. 2020,

Report on internal Control Over GbmoVarice
Managemerit of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack CountieSf Inc. s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could, have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the .Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Internal control over compliance. Accordingly." we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severd
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing ofMnternaf control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 5. 2021
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ACTIQN PROGRAim BELKNAP-MERRItVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020

SUIVIMARY OF AUDITORS? RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. One material weakness relating to the audit of the financial statements is reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on en Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No Instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4'. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the (Jniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5; The auditors' report on compliance for the major'federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Low Income Home Energy Assistance
Program 93.568, Head Start 93.600, Community Services Block Grant 93.569, U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Food Distribution Cluster, 10.565, 10.568, 10.569, Trade
Mitigation 10.178, NON-FEDERAL Public Utilities Companies, Electrical Assistance
Program.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk auditee.

27



FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2020-001

Condition: The financial statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of fieldwork
understated revenue and expenses by a material amount. This was primarily the result of
improper cut off due to revenue and expenses related to the fiscal year under audit being
recorded to the subsequent period.

Criteria: The Organization's Internal control procedures should be structured so that accounts
are reconciled and reviewed on a timely basis and a review is completed prior to closing the
financial records for the year.

Cause: The Organization's Director of Finance did not regard the proper cut off of the- direct
fuel assistance payrtients and reimbursement revenue to t>e important. Both the accounting
staff and the staff within the fuel assistance departrpent appears to maintain good controls and
good records, however, the Director of Finance did not understand the importance of using the
information available to post an entry to ensure correct cut off of revenue and expenses.

Effect: A significant adjusting journal entry was proposed by the auditor to ensure accurate
revenue and expense cut off for the period under audit.

Recommendations: The auditors recommend that the financial closing process include a
review of all significant balance sheet and profit and loss accounts.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

KEY PERSONNEL SALARIES AND ALLOCATION

Name

Jeanne Agri

Job Title

Executive Director

Salary

myiujo

% Paid

froiri thu

Cootract

0%

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

O.OD

Elizabeth Hcyward Community Services Director ifi9sn.so 50% S'/lSS'JS'

Valerie Provenzano Program Manager, Fuel Assistance 50%



Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONA.L PROFILE

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed comm'unicQtion skills; written, verbal and prescnlatlonal. Adept
in coaching and mentoring employees ajid colleagues as evidenced by my selcctioo by the Notional Office of Head Start to
serve as a mentor for new Head Start Directors. Committed to continuous improvement of activities to ensure they meet

.o.ii.teo.m.cs aRRTP.yed by the board through strategic plajiiting. creating goal-orienicd systems and conformance with all
local, state and federal guidance.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Aciipn Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Concord, NH
'E^cUtive'Director' " • . 2018-prcsent

•  • Assurcs'the organization has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress towards meeting
the Agencies overall mission ,

•  • Responsible for the-gencral supervision of all grant awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulatory, and /or
program and financial requirements are met, that generally accepted accounting principles ore applied, and
that^-pFogi;am-and.financial4Jolicie&.anxLpEQccdutes.ar.e.adhcce.d_to. !

•  Provide leadership in developing programs, organizatiooal structures and financiai systems that carry out the
jnstructiohs and policies authorized by the Board

• &tablish sound vvorldng rclatidnships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations
and all funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs. /TN

•  Sec that the Board. Director is kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the organization and all V-/
important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and Nutrition Operations Director 2016-2018 .

Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Women Infantand Children, and
Literacy Programs, as well as development of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services
,Rormulatei:imprqyc-and-imp|cment.departmental.and.QrgMizatiQnaJ,pQliiiLe.s..drulpfSJ£S:4u^^^-^-2--r ~ - -
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures

•  Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities

•  Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director
Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational
plans

Director of Child Development Programs 2001-2016
Hire, coach and evaluate theperformancc of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center
Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff
Provide coaching, and learning opportunities for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and
improving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices

»  plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction

.- Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards
Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start progran\ •
including education, health, mental health, social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities , and
transportation ;



w
«Cgl|iH1?l^tft^^thrm^ag^-aiidMnternaVfiscal-:department--in'the-monitoring-and'Contfol«of'OomDonenr-—-gr-
budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the
Performance Standards and other regulatory requirements

Work in partnership with internal departments to support project goals and meet customcrexpcctations
Establish and maintain relationships and collaborations with public school districts, systems of higher
education, and other community agencies and partners

Ensure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in
compliance with Head Start Performance Standards
Ensure consistency in service delivery across the pro^am with attention to inclusive practices and
integration of component areas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

Quality Assurance Director/Co-Director for Child Development Programs 1999-2001
•  Established and managed a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defined results,

milestones, and targets inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices
•  Monitored for quality and compliance at Grantee and Delegate level
•  Worked closely with program Director to review, track and.assess monitoring compliance throughout

program operations
•  Developed and Implements a written quality assurance and performance evaluation plan b conjunction with

.Govembg Board, Policy Council
Interpreted and evaluated avariety of information to present it in meaningful omlyoV written form for
varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound decision-making

Area h^anager/Education Manager 1997-1999
•  Supervision of various Child Care sites including direct supervision of Center Directors/Site Mwagers
•  Coordinate personal and professional development and trainbg plans for staff and ensure tcachmg staff

progress towards educational requirements as supported by the Performance Standards
•  Documented and administered both positive and negative feedback and utilize Performance

Improvement Plans'when warranted.

Child Care Center Director/Site Manager 1995 -1997
•  Supervised, mentorcd, coach and administered work plans and directives to staff
•  Communicated areas of performance improvement to staff and promote training that reflected individual

needs ofstaffmcmbcrs and the team as a whole

■" • "■ ^Hsufc^rd^'^'cbmpliah'ce withcbdcsofStatftandiocal liccnsing-agencics and grantrcquircments -
New Hampshire Technical College, Nashua, NH
Instructor 1995-1997

•  Taught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum development forEarly Childhood
Education Program
Planned and organized Instruction to maximize documented student learning

•  Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students
•  Modified, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs

EDUCATION

Soutbcro New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration June 2017

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
Bachelors of Arts In Elementary Education 198 J



EUzaheth HejTffiard.

Highlights

Furidralsing and event planning . .. .

Relationship building expert
Oeadllne-driven
Obnor database'management

Exceptional m'ulti-tas'ker ' - .
Decisive problem sdiver '

Organized and efficient

'Motivated team'player
Cross-functional team management ^ J 21.

Experience ■

Community Services Director-August 2017-Present * '

• Resp_onsjble.for the plamiihg, sched_uling, implementotion and monitpring ofthe
Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs. .

•  Responsibletforfthe.devclopment of internal operating-prppedurcs for..^^^ and
••' '•Electric Assistance Prpgrams.compliance.wjth agency and;fundjngTequjrements

•  Responsible for the development ofthe'ojjerating budget-for Fue'l-ahd Electric •
. st?bcttii"e'with'=cofh'pfianc'e=wiTh''afl

funding source requirements. • .;i:-

•  Responsible for the management, training, supervision and evaluation of Fuel and
Electric Assistance and area center staff.'"

• " Responsible for compi ling and maintaining accurate records of programs
statistics, financial reports, reimbursement requests for agency and Various '
funding sources.

•  Responsible for developing and implementing outreach plans and centralize client
intake for Fuel and Electric Assistance Progr^s and other agencies services
provided through the area center structure. TTiis will be done in conjunction with
agency program and area center directors.

•  Responsible for securing adequate funding for Fuel and Electric Assistance
Programs and local binding of area center system by local cities and towns.

•  Responsible for providing public relations and information related to Fuel and
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Electric Assistance Programs and area center services.

•  Responsble for coordinating with other program and area center directors on grant
development by other agency programs and services to meet local community
needs.

•  ' Responsible for preparing, writing, and organizing proposals and applications for
Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs and area center programs.

• ... Responsible, for lhe.dcyclo.p.m.eni and implementaiign of the Information and
referral system used by the area center staff.

•  Responsible for the development and implementation of a community needs
assessment for the Agency and communities served.

•  Assist in planning, development and implementation of a data collections
software package with the state and other local CAP agencies.

Director of Mission Advancement- June 2016- July 2017
•  Work with the Executive Director and other members of senior leadership to

develop the annual operating budget and identify the financial needs of the
organization that must be met by fundraising;

•  Create and manage the annual development plan that encompasses individual and
institutional giving (foundations, corporation and partners); i

•  Track key metrics, where success is measured by growth in contributor numbers,
donor retention and dollars raised;

• Manage the development budget and assist the Executive Director in developing
individual Board member fundraising plans;

• Manage the portfolio of donor prospects, including identifying, researching,
qualifying, cultivating and soliciting gifts from individuals, corporations, and
foundations . .. —.

•  Support the Executive Director in major gift cultivation and solicitation efforts
through research, planning, strategy, moves management process.

•  Collaborate with the Executive Director to create individualized stewardship
plans'for top contributors, including customized donor reports and donor
recognition.

• Manage the annual giving program, including communications, appeals, and
stewardship. •

•  Personally acknowledge contributors and the impact of their gifts. •

« Manage budget [expenses and revenues] and staff on charitable gaming activities
and placement and sales of vending machines.

•  Effectively position/prepare the Executive Director and Board members for
interactions with major contributors and prospects.



.  Provide ongoing inspiration, support, resources and training in ftindraising to the
Board and staff;

. Manage the Development and Communications staff for message management
and effective use of the contributor database,- moves management and other tools,

. including-causc-related marketing, cultivation events, etc.

.  Collaborate with other GBS staff in the timely development of written
commuiiications.such as annual appeals, direct mail Euid advertising.

.  -Travel to meet with top contributors in addition to fundraising events and board
meetings.

Director of Community Relations-March 2015-June 2016

•  Trc^urc ofJhq Private Provider N^ork m C^
• Assist in all fundraising events for Great Bay. Including plan, and execution.
•  Provide active representation at local and-state level events and meetings.
• Stay currerit and report" back on recent state and federal disability news.
• • Increase'community aWarcness of the organization, client services, and business

• opportunities,

• ' Assist with' the newslcttei, media presentations, marketing rhaterials, and
fundraising events.'

■' •' "Make presentations at High Schools PTA's, and parent groups.
•  Seek out other venues where groups of parents attend meetings..

■  M^tWidTajM "special Education "Directors^
• Develop an active Business Advisory Council.

Associate Director of Programs and Services September 2013- March 201S-Great
•BayrServlces- r - - - • • •■

• Oversees Clinical Services. Supervises Case Managers and Nurses. Oversees
Individual

Service Plans, progress notes and other program documentation. Assures
coordination

between case managers and appropriate program staff.
• Conducts interdisciplinary staff meetings with case managers, nurses, residential

managers and community center staff to assure coordination of services, client
concerns, r ' j

incidents and trends. Facilitates problem solving and is solution focused.
• Oversees Employment, Day and Residential Services. Reviews consumer
progress,

written reports and assures coordination between {ill assigned managers.
Supervises all

direct care program managers.
•  Is responsible for the hiring and dismissal of all direct care staff.
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• Responsible for orientation and training of program staff.
• Oversees Residential Managers
• Acts as liaison with funding and regulatory agencies including Developmental

Disabilities of Maine and New Hampshire.
• Assists in preparation of annual budget for services Responsible for contract
management

and compliance for all services reporting to the position.
•  • • Oversees Gonsumer admission, intake, program management, transfer and

discharge
decisions and procedures.

• Works in collaboration with and supports the Executive Director on various
projects and

•• initiatives.

• Assists the Executive Director in matters relating to organizational operations.
Acts as

back up for the Executive Director in his/her absence.
•  Coordinates orients and oversees placements of volunteers and interns.

Program Manager for Employment Services October 2011- August 2013-Grcat Bay
Service

Community Employment Coordinator: Qreat Bay Services, November 2008- October
2011

Secretary: Lcddy Center for the Performing Arts, July 2008- March 2009

Marketing and Communications Intern: Amphenol TCS, October 2007- August 2008

Education

• MBA in Leadership: SNHU, Manchester NH
•  Graduate Certificate in Leadership in a Not for Profit: SNHU, Manchester, NH
•  Bachelor of Science in Business Administration , Hesser College, Manchester,

- NH

•  /^sociates Degree in Public Relations, Hesser College, Manchester, NH

Skills and. Training

• Constant Contact-Monthly newsletter

• Donor Perfect-Use this for our donor database.

• Attended the CASE Summer Institute in Educational Fundraising

• Microsoft Office- Word, Excel, Publisher, and PowerPoint

•  Board of Directors for Epping Community Church



Valerie L Provenzano

A Profile

Experienced in office administrative and management skills
Excellent communication skills, assisting others and independent working capabilities

4 Skills

Applications: Microsoft Excel, OfiSce, Word and Outlook, Quickbooks

4 Work Experience '

Commuaity Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties Inc., Concord NH
Fuel Assistance PrOgram Manager, Community Services Dept 6/2017 - present
Responsible for the day to day operations and management duties of the Federal Fuel Assistance program
(LIHEAP) in the Community Service Department. Assists in the planning, implementation, monitoring and
reporting of the FucrAislistance'pfogfam: Prb operational managemerit'support for the office-functions in
Concord and at local centers, including applications, certifications, interaction with participants and vendor
inquiries, preparation and maintenancc of record" keeping systems and collection of data statistics for all
programs for funding rcquests and reports. Assists in the certification.and processing of incoming FAP/EAP
applications to include vendor and client notification. Answers FAP/EAP office telephone calls to resolve
"^estlons and inquiries. Provides FAP program,inT6i™fidh7modiTicatio and procHurc manual intormation
directed from OSI to Intake, Ccrtifier(s) and program A/P clerk. Supervises Certificr(s). Maintoins full
understanding and knowledge of and oversees the FAP invoice payment process, issuance, maintenance and
follow-up of FAP program Vendor contracts and fiscal procedures. M^ntains.knpwlcdgc of federal, state and
agency policies and procedures for effective implementation of the Fuel Assistance Pro^am goals .and
objectives.
Program Assistant, Community Scpices Dept 2/2009-6/2017
Assist Director with the administration and management duties of the Federal Fuel Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) and State Electrical Assistance programs. Assist in the oversight of thdintakc and outreach functions
of the agency's Area Center sy^em. Provides clerical support for office functions in the Concord office ̂ d at
the local centers, including applications, certifications, interaction with participants and vendor inquiries;■■pfEp'aratton'an'd'maintenanccrofrecord'kccping-systemsand-collection-ofdata statistics-for--a[lT)rog7^s-fpr
funding requests and reports. Coordiiiates,d5e paperwork flow of information to participants, Area Ccriter staff
and other programs within the agency. Assists in training and coaching of Intake staff and Area Center
Managers.

D&S Designs, LLC, Gllmantoo FW, NH
Bookkeeper/Office Manager 2003-11/2008
Responsible for managing the day to day office operations for this custom fine cabinetry and furniture
company. Interact with clients and contractors to schedule work. Track progress and job costs of multiple
.projects. Utilize Quickbooks for billing, accounts payable & receivable, payroll, banking, time tracking, job &
supply ordering, budgeting, fofec^tihg ahd marketing. Compose bid letters and proposals. Prepare and
maintain employee records and all human resource functions. Maintained sales literature and company website.
As needed, supervised Shop personnel and assisted with detail and finish work of cabinetry. ■

Palmer Gas & Oil Company, Atkinson, NH
Sales Support Staff 2001-2003
Assisted inside and outside Sales personnel. Scheduled sales personnel appointments and installation ot
products and technicians. Client Communications. Assisted with general office duties and support.
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Managed 6. office personnel. Responsible for hiring, training and motivation. Calculate and submit weekly
payroll for 30+ employees. Submit accounU payable for department. General office duties: inputting and
maintaining all new/existing customer accounts, monthly budget and pre-buy accounts and customer
correspondence.
Service Department Managers Assistant 1998-2000
Assisted in supervising 9 LP/Oil technicians. Scheduled appointments and instaliaticns. Answer & resolve
incoming Service Dcpt telephone calls.

4*- Education . ..

Hesser College, Manchester, NH
Associate Degree in Business Science. 1987
Continuing Education, Concord and Derry School Districts
Certificates of Completion - Microsoft Windows 98 and Excel

^ Activities

Membership in Greater Concord Area Chamber of Commerce, 2007 - 2008

^ References - available upon request


